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KEN NATHANSON, ESQ. (STATE BAR NO. 077556)
CAMERON H. TOTTEN, E8Q. (Stam: BAR No. 180765)
SHERMAN & NATHANSON
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‘Telephone: (310} 246- 0321
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EDUCATORS OF ORANGE COUNTY, INC,

" UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
" CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SAcvD5 07

WORD OF GOD FELLOWSHIP, INC, A CASE NO. y n
GEORGIA NON-PROFIT CORPORATION F Ax
D.B.A. DAYSTAR TELEVISION NETWORK
A X. A, COMMUNITY TELEVISION
EDUCATORS OF ORANGE COUNTY, INC.; COMPLAINT FOR:

Plaintiff, | (1) VIOLATION OF THE EQUAL

V.

GERALD “JERRY” PATTERSON, an -
individual; COAST COMMUNITY
COLLEGE DISTRICT, 2 political
subdivision of the State of California;
KOCE FOUNDATION, a California non-
Eroﬁt public benefit corpomtmn MEL

OGERS, an individual; GEORGE BROWN,
an mdmdual WALTER HOWALD, an
individual; and DOES 1 through 10
inclusive,

@

3)
4)
Defendants,

Plaintiff WORD or GOp FELLOWSHIP, INC., D.B
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PROTECTION CLAUSE OF THE
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT OF
THE UNITED STATES
CONSTITUTION [42 US.C.§
1983];

VIOLATION OF THE
ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE TO THE
FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTLION
[42 U.S.C. § 1983];

VIOLATION OF RICO [18 U.S.C.
§ 1961 LT SEQ.}; AND :
CONSPIRACY TO INTERFERE
wiTH CrviL RigeTs {42 U.S.C. §
1985(3))

A, DAYSTAR TELEVISION NETWORK

AX.A, COMMUNITY TELEVISION EDUCATORS OF ORANGE CounTty, INC. (hereinafter

referred to as “Daystar” or “Plaintiff”’) avers as follows:

"
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| 'Fwe Thousand Dollars ($75, 000'0 )
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' JURISDICTION AND VENUE
1. Jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and
1343 because the matters in controversy arise under the Constitution and laws of the
United States.
72." Jurisdiction also is conferred upon this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332

because there is complete diversity of citizenship between the Plaintiff and all Defendants

and the matter m cont1 oversy, exclusive of mterest and costs, exceeds the sum of chemy-

'3, This Court has the ubht to grdnt (a) the requested declaratory and injunctive
relief under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1343(a)(3), 2201; (b) the requested damages under 28 U.S.C. §
1343(a)(3); and (<) attorneys’ fees and costs under 42 U.S.C. § 1988.

4, Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because the events
that gave rise to Plaintiff’s claims took place within Orange County, the Southern
Division of the Central District of California. |

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

5. This action involves discriminatory acts against Daystar by Defendants
because Daystar owns and operates television stations throughout the Uxfiited States that
offer programing designed to promote and disseminate Christian tel1et§, teachingé, beliefs
and values. Specifically, Defendants conspired to knowingly violate the provisim‘ls of
California Education Code § 81450 (*“‘Section 81450") in order to prevent Plaintiff from
purchasing KOCE-TV (“KOCE-TV”), a Public Broadcasting System affiliate, because
Defendants “believed” that the viewers of KOCE-TV should not be subjected to
Daystar s Christian and family oriented programming. ~

6. Such blatant discrimination on the basis of religion contravenes the First,
Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution (U. S, Const. Amend.
I, V, XIV) and the Civil Rights Act (42 U.S.C. § 1981 et seq.). This action therefore
secks, among other fhings, damages against Defendants for wrongfully refusing to sell

KOCE-TV to Daystar and ConsbirinQ to violate Section 81450, undo?the authority of the
R
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above-referenced statutory and constifutibnal provisions as well as 18 U.S.C. § 1961 et
seq. (“RICO™).
ENE AVE T
7. Plaintiff is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was a non-profit
corporation organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of Georgia, that 1s
and at all relevant times mentioned herein was conducting its business under the fictitious

name and stylc of Daystal TcIcv1ston Network Plamtlff’s principal business office is

located in the State of Texas howevcr Plamtxff owns and oper ates television stations in

" several states of the ‘United States,

8. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that defendant Coast

- Community College District (“CCCD”) is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was

a political subdivision of the State of California that was formed and operates pursuant to,
among other things, California Education Code §§ 66700, 70901, et se’q. The CCCD is
governed by its five-member Board of Trustees (hereinafter referred to as the “Board™),
which is responsible, among other things, for managing property held by CCCD,
rendering administrative decisions, and otherwise conducting the huéiness of CCCD. The
Board, as the sole governing body of defendant CCCD, is and functlons as an
Instrumentality of defendant CCCD, and for all purposes herein, any act or omission by or
on the part of the Board constitutes an act or omission by or on the part of defendhnt
CCCD. The CCCD’s principal place of business is located in the City of Costa Mesa,
County of Orange, State of California. |

9.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that defendant KOCE
Foundation (the “Foundation™) is and at all relevant times mentionedherein was a non-
profit public benefit corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of California.
The Foundation’s principal place of business is located in the City of Huntington Beach,
County of Orange, State of California.
111
111
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1 I | 10 | Plaintiff is informed ‘and. believes and thereon évers that defendant Mel
2 | Rogers (“Rogers™) is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was the Program Director
3 || of KOCE-TV and was and is now an individual residing in the County of Orange, State of
4 California.
5 © 1. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that defendant George
6 Brown (“Brown”) is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was a member of the
7 | Boardand was a.nd is.now an 1nd1v1dual 1681d1ng in thc County of Orange, State of
g Cahfc')rma"“ B
9 12, Plamt1ff is mformcd and beheves and thcreon avers that defendant Walter.
10 Howald (“Howald™) is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was a member of the
11§ . Board and was and is now an individual residing in the County of Orange, State of
2| catfornia |
13 13, Plamntiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that defendant Gerald
14 “Jerry” Patterson (“Patterson”) is and at all relevant times mentioned herein was a
15 member of the Board and was and is now an individual residing in the County of Orange,
16 State 6f California. (Brown, Patterson and Howald are hereinafter referred to as the

17 “Board Member Defendants™).

.

18 14. Plaintiff does not know the true names and capacities of the defendants sued
19 herein as DOES 1 through 10 (“DOE Defendants”), inclusive, and therefore sued said

20 k DOE Defendants by fictitious names. Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on

21 such information and belief avers that each of the DOE Defendants is responsible in some
22 manner for the acts and omisstons described herein. Plaintiff will amend this Complaint

23 } to set forth the true names and capacities of each DOE Defendant when same are

24 ascertained.

25 15, Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief
26 avers that defendants Brown, Howald, Patterson and DOE Defendants 1 through 5,

27 inclusive, and each of thein, are and at all material times have been, the agents, servants

28 ' or erﬁployees of the CCCD, purporting to act within the scope of sai;& agency, service or
fx
S"I’thl.‘hN&NA~|-|II\'N$;7N:. S T T T T By R
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employment in performing the acts and omitting to act as averred herein. The CCCD,
Brown, Howald, Patterson and DOE Defendants 1 through 5, inclusive, are herelinafter
collectively referred to as the “CCCD Defendants™.

16.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief

~ avers that defendants Rogers and DOE Defendants 6 through 10, inclusive, and each of

them, are and at all materia} times have been, the agents, servants or employees of the
Foundatxon purportmt_, to act w1th1n the scope of said agency, service or employment in

performmg thc acts and omlttmg to dCt as averred herem “The F oundanon Rogers and

” DOE Defendants 6 thmugh 10, mcluswc, are hereinafter collectively referred to as the

“Foundation Defendants”.
| .FACTS COMMON TO ALL CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

17. Inor about July 2003, the CCCD was facing an existing and projected
budgetary crisis that would have a deleterious effect upon the continuing operations of the
local community colleges located in the CCCD and in order td ease that budgetary crisis,
the Board resolved to sell KOCE-TV, which the CCCD then owned (including the
Federal Communications Commission broadcasting license) and which' the Foundation
then managed and operated for the CCCD. At and before the time the _Blbard resolved to
sell KOCE-TV, Rogers represented to the Board that raising funds to operate KOCE-TV
and satisfy Federal Communications Commission (“FCC’) mandates regarding ‘_
conversion of the station from analog to digital format would be facilitated by a sale of
KOCE-TV to the Foundation or a similar entity committed to preserving KOCE-TV as
PBS affiliate. |

18, In connection wifh a sale of KOCE-TV, prior to the Board’s resolution, the
CCCD Defendants and the Foundation Defendants sought and obtained legal advice from
attorneys licensed to practice law in the State of California as to how to properly
administer a sale of KOCE-TV under California law and Plaintiff is informed and
believes and based on such information and belief avers that the CCCD Defendants and

the Foundation Defendants were advised by the attorneys whose advice had been sought
|28
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1 that Section 81450 prescribed the ruk;,s and procedures for such a sale. Specifically,
2 ﬂ Plaintiff is informed and believes and on such information and belief avers that the
3 CCCD Defendants and the Foundation Defendants were apprized before or at t}{e time the
4 | CCCD resolvcd to sen KOCb—TV that the CCCD had to conduct an auction and accept
| 5 | Ithe hlghcst cash offc1 for KOCE “TV that was made by a responsible bidder or reject all
6 { offers, as clearly provided under the provisions of Section 81450.
7 .19, - At the timé the CCCD resolved to sell KOCE—TV the CCCD Defendants and
8.0 - the Foundation Defendants knew thdt blOd.dCﬂSielb of faith based programmmg would
9 hkely comprise the majority of the bldders dt any auctwn sale of KOCE-TV.
10 20. Tn or about July 2003, in the County of Orange, State of California, prior to
11 h  the vote_of the Board to sell KOCE-TV, the CCCD Defendants and the Foundation
12 Defendan\ts agreed and conspired with one another to violate and circumvent the statutory

13 requireiﬁénts of a sale of KOCE-TV as set forth in Section 81450 in order to sell KOCE-
14 TV to the Foundation or a similar entity committed to preserving KOCE-TV as PBS
15 affiliate and prevent KOCE-TV from falling into the hands of a faith based broadcasting

16 company.

17 21. The CCCD failed to post notice of the intended sale of KQCE-TV and failed
18 to publish notice of the intended sale of KOCE-TV in a newspaper having a genéral

19 circulation as required by Section 81450(a). Nevertheless, Plaintiff did become zfyvare

20 that the CCCD Defendants were soliciting the submission of offers to purchase KOCE-

21 TV, pursuant to the provisions of Section 81450(b), and that the Board had purportedly

22 imposed an October 8, 2003 deadiine as the last date prospective purchasers could submit
23 offers. The auction was to be conducted by Media Venture Partners of San Francisco.
24 22.  Atall relevant times herein, the CCCD Defendants expressed a preference

25 to preserve KOCE-TV as a PBS affiliate, even if it meant selling the Station to a low
26 bidder, and to prevent KOCE-TV from being owned by a faith based broadcaster. Aside
27 from the Foundation, all other significant bidders in the auction, including Plaintiff, were

28 faith based broadcasters. !

~
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1 23.  In or about July 2003, defendant Foundation, bidding jointly with KCET-
2 TV of Los Angeles, placed an initial bid of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000.00), of
3 which One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) was payable at the closing of the sale and the
4 remamder was to be financed over a period of years (“KCET/Foundation Offer”).!
s {247 On or prior to October 8, 2003; Plaintiff submitted to the Board and the
6 CCCD a written bid to purchase KOCE-TV for the sum of Twenty-Five Million One
7 ' Hundred Thousand Dollars (‘SZS 100 00() 00) of Wthh One Million Dollars
8 (S;l OOO 000 00) was pd}'dblc in cash upon cxecutlon of a Purchase and Sale Agreement,
9 | and the balanéc of Twcntyl our Million One Hundred Dollars ($24,100,000) was payable
10 in cash at the closing of the sale, with the closing being contingent upon, among other

11 J - things, the transfer of the FCC license to Plaintiff (the “Daystar Offer”).

12 25. By August of 2003, KCET-TV dropped out of the bidding process. As a
13 result, the Foundation submitted a néw bid on behalf of itself on or about October 8,

14 2003. The Foundation submitted a proposal to the Board and the CCCD to purchase

15 KOCE-TV for the sum of Thirty-Two Million Dollars ($32,000,000.00), of which Eight
16 Million Dollars ($8,000,000.00) was to be paid at the closing of the sale (although

17 borrowed from CCCD), and the remainder was to be financed over a peripd of ten (10)
18 years or longer with a fixed simple interest rate of LIBOR plus two percent (LIBO:R +
19 2% (the “Foundation Offer”). ¢

20 26.  On or about October 9, 2003, Plaintiff submitted a written bid of Forty

21 Million Dollars ($40,000,000.00) cash, upon the same terms and conditions as the
22 | Daystar Offer (the “Amended Daystar Offer”).

23 *
24
25
26
27 'The bids of other partics aside from Plaintiff and Defendant Foundation will not be
g addressed or discussed jn this Complaint. Such other bids are irrelevant to the facts and
circumstances of the prescot matter between Plaintiff and Defendants, }:
5Ill:l(h(ANl:NA'l;IANSl]N ) o ' 8 7 B o ’ - ) : .;
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27. The Amended Daystar Offer, which was and is unquestionably the highest
responsible cash bid in the auction, was rejected by the Board as untimely in light of the
October 8, 2003 bidding deadline imposed by the Board. Hence, the Daystar éffer was
deemed by the Board to be Plaintiff’s operative bid. The Daystar Offer, when taking

-' present value of the payment schedule and debt service into account, was and is still the

highest responsible cash bid in the auction.

28, In or about Dccember 2003 two months after the bidding deadline imposed

by the Board for submlttm g offerq to pux chaqe KOCE TV the Board improperly rejected
- thc Daystar Offer wh_lch was clearly the, “hlghest responsﬂ)le bid,” as defined by Section

81450, and instead accepted the Foundation Offer. Thereafter, without re-noticing the
sale or providiﬁg notice to Plaintiff or the public or otherwise giving Plaintiff or any other
person or entity the opportdnity to submit any other proposals for KOCE-TV, the CCCD
Defendarts and the Foundation Defendants improperly and illegally renegotiated the
Foundation Offer to reduce the purchase price by $4,000,000.00 to Twenty Eight Million
Dollars ($28,000,000.00), and to extend the Foundation’s payment schedule as follows:
(1) One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) in cash upon the execution of a
Purchase and Sale Agreement; (ii) Seven Million Nine Hundred Thousa‘ﬁd Dollars
($7,900,000.00) in cash at the closing of the sale, with the closing confingcnt, am:ong
other things, upon the transfer of the FCC license; (iii) the delivery of a promisso‘w note
in the original principal sum of Seventeen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollai's
($17,500,000.00) payable by the Foundation to the CCCD as follows: (a) no payments for
a period of five (5) yeats after the closing (the “Grace Period ™); (b) then equal annual
installments of $500,000.00 for a period of five (5) years, commencing at the expiration
of the grace period; (c) then equal annual installments of $750,000.00 for an additional
period of twenty years; (iv) the provision of programming and services to the CCCD by

KOCE-TV fora period of seven years following the closing of the sale at a vatue of

7‘)“”

N
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1 $357,143.00 per year for a period of seven years, for a total value of Two Million Five
2 Hundred Thousand Dollars ($2,500,000.00) (hereinafter, the “Modified Foundation -
3 CCCD Terms of Sale”). Yursuant to the Modified Foundation - CCCD Terms of Saie,

4 the Foundatmn would again have to borrow the cash it would pay at the closing and the
5 | promlssory note payable to defendant CCCD would contain a cross default provision that
6 would declare a default by defendant Foundation on the down payment financing as a

1 - default under the mdebtednesq to dcfcndant CCCD. Plaintiff is mformcd and believes

8 l  and based on such mtormdtlon and bchef avers that this sxgmﬁcant modtﬁcatlon of terms

B e

9 L constltuted an eutu ely new offcx sc,palatc ‘and distinct from the orj jiginal Foundation Offer,

10 yct submitted more than two months after the bidding deadline set by the Board.
11 T 29. - Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief
12 avers that the Board of CCCD attempted to justify the Foundation’s reduced purchase

13 price and extended payment schedule per the Modified Foundation - CCCD Terms of
14 Sale on the grounds that Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000.00) was supposedly the

15 amount CCCD would have been required to repay to the Corporation for Public

16 Broadcasting (“CPB”) and the Public Broadcasting System (“PBS™) for grants and

17 equipment had another bidder (e.g., a religious broadcaster) purchased IéOCE—TV and

18 ceased being a PBS affiliate. This should not have been a concern to the CCCD, :

19 however, as Plaintiff would have assumed any such obligation in the event that Plaintiff
20 purchased the Station. Furthermore, Plaintiff has never incurred any liabilities to -fhe

21 CPB, PBS or any other person or entity for returning conditional grants made to any of
22 Plaintiff’s many telovision stations where such grant was made prior to Plaintiff’s

23 ownership of such station. The true facts are that the Defendants condpired and planned
24 to reduce the amount payable by the Foundation at the commencement of the bidding

25 process. Thug, Foundation made a bid that CCCD could arguably deem the highest bid

20 knowing that the umount would be lowered after Foundation’s bid was accepted.
27 '
_’k
28 5
i~
_Sln::_uM_AN&NA‘ruMi_suN 9 J' )
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‘ Foundatmn and mstead award the sale to Daystar on the grounds that the CCCD: (a)

KOCE-TV, an asset of the CCCD, which was being sold pursuaﬁt to the provisions of

213 26-2503
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30. On or about February 4, 2004, Plaintiff made a written demand on the
CCCD Defendants to (i) cease and desist from selling KOCE-TV to defendant
Foundation and (ii) agree to the sale of KOCE-TV to Plaintiff pursuant to the tf;rms and
conditions of the Daystar Offer.

731, Accordingly, on February 24, 2004, Daystar filed a Petition for Writ of
Mandatz/Prohibition (“Petition”) with the Orange County Superior Court (“Superior
Court?).. The Petition 1equested that the court set a31de the sale of KOCE-TV to the

fdlled to ablde by Cahfmma law, and (b) abused its discretion by not performing its

ministerial duty to accept Daystar’s highest responsible cash bid for the purchase of

Section 81450. :

32.  On April 19, 2004, the Superior Court denied Plaintiff’s Petition on the
grounds that; (1) the phrase “may sell for cash” in Section 81450 meant that the CCCD
was not required to sell its property for cash, but could instead carry paper to finance a
third party’s purchase of KOCE-TV; (2) the word “responsible,” as it is used in the phrase
“highest responsible bidder” that is contained in Section 81450, to 'mclpgie factors other
than financial ability to perform in accordance with the offer made; (3) Daystar’s bid for
KOCE-TV was not the highest price offercd for the station because of the potenti?al

$22,559,886.00 liability to the CPB and for reimbursement of grants from the United

States -Department of Commerce, Office of Telecommunications to KOCE-TV; and (4) it i
was pfoper for the CCCD to take the potential liability into account when determining the |
highest bid, even though the evidence that these liabilities could actually occur was
extremely weak and evidence that such liabilities have never occurred in similar

transactions across the country was presented by Daystar.

-——.,
”~ ,.»
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33. Plaiﬁfiff aﬁpcéied the Superior Court’s decision to the California Court of
Appeals, Fourth District, Division Three (“Court ‘oprpeals ™). After full briefing and
oral argument, on June 23, 2005, the Court of Appeals reversed the Superior C“ourt’s
decision with instructions {o the Superior Court that it: (a) void the sale between CCCD
and the Foundation; (b) return KOCE-TV to the CCCD; and (¢) allow the CCCD to either
conduct a new sale pursuant to the mquirements of Section 81450 or not sell the station at
all, Howevex pnor to the decision by the Court of Appeals, the sale of KOCE-TV to the

Foundatlon was completcd and the FCC license was trdnsfex red hom CCCD to the

" Foundation.

34, On July 8, 2005, Plaintiff filed a Petition for Rehearing with the Court of

_ Appeal to request that the court reconsider its decision to allow a new sale instead of

awarding the sale of KOCE-TV to Plaintiff. The court has until July 25, 2005, to rule

upon Plaintiff’s Petition for Rehearing,

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

[VIOLATION OF '[: HE ESTABLISHMENT CLAUSE TO THE FIRST AMENDMENT OF THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION (42 U.S.C. § 1983) AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS]

35.  Plaintiff re-avers and incorporates herein by this reference ‘éach and every
averment contained in paragraphs 1 through 34, inclusive, of this Complaint. |

36. The Establishment Clause of the First Amendment of the United States
Constitution provides that “Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of
religion, or prohibiting the free exercise thereof.” The Establishment Clause is applicable
to the States through the Fourteenth Ame:ndment of the United States Constitution.

37. The CCCD is a state agency and Rogers, the Foundation afid the Board
Member Defendants were, at all relevant times, acting on behalf of and/or conspiring with
the CCCD. Thus, all of the Defendants were state actors. The CCCD, the Foundation,
Rogers and the Board Member Defendants violated the Establishment Clause by failing to
award the sule of KOCE-TV to Plaintiff and conspiring with each other to ensure that
KOCE-TV would not be awarded to Plaintiff, even though Plaintiff v?;és the “highest

13
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responsible bidder,” because of Plaintiff’s religious affiliation.
38. In providing significant government funds to finance the Foundatjon,

CCCD’s religious discrimination, including, but not limited to, taking adverse actions

_ agamst Plaintiff based upon religion, altering the terms and conditions of the sale of

KOCE-TV bdsed upon whglon, and disadvantaging bidders because of their religious

beliefs or practices, Defendants are in violation of the Establishment Clause of the First

- Amendment to the United States Constitutfxon and made actionable by 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

~39.  Plaintiff is informed and beheves and based on such information and belief
avers that as a direct and prox1mate‘1csult of Defendcmts dlSClll’nlnrltOIy prdctlces
Plaintiff has suffered economic loss and damages from wrongfully being prevented from
acquiring the unique television station KOCE-TV, which Plaintiff properly and rightfully
won via Qublic auction, and was thercby prevented from expanding its broadcast audience
and business operations to the lucrative Southern California market.

40,  Asthe amount of damages to Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’
discriminatory business practices as averred herein is difficult to ascertain, Plaintiff is
without an adequate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable harm if Defendants, and
each of them, as well as tﬁeir respective officers, agents, servants and employees, are not
enjoined from employing against Plaintiff the discriminatory practices averred in‘ this

{

Complaint. .

41.  Plaintiff has retained the law firm of SHERMAN & NATHANSON to prosecute
this action and has and will incur costs and attorneys’ fees in connection therewith.
Pléintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that it is entitled to an award of
attorney’s fees in this action by virtue of 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and, there?ore, seeks an award
of attorneys’ fees for having filed and prosecuted this action.

42.  Inperforming the acts described herein and in taking the actions described
herein in furtherance of said congpiracy, Defendants, and each of them, acted with malice,
oppression and discriminatory intent entitling Plaintiff to an award of punitive and

exemplary damages in 4 sum to be determined at trial. -

2 | A
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SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIER
[VIOLATION Or THE EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE OF THE FOURTEENTH AME,NDMENT
OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION (42 U.S.C. § 1983) AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS]
43, Plaintiff re-avers and incorporates herein by this reference each and every
averment contained in paragraphs 1 through 42, inclusive, of this Complaint.

44, | Plaintiff avers that the rejection of the Daystar Offer and the Modified
Daystar Offer in favor of the Foundation Offer {(which later transmo griﬁe_d"mto the
Modified Foundation - CCCD Terms of Salc) was a result of Defendaﬁts’ desire to
prevent KOCE-TV from being owned and operated by 2 religiA(;lAJ‘é orééﬁiiaﬁon.

~45.  Plaintiff avers that Defendants, and each of them, at relevant times

.d.es.érialr).éd‘heréizn; have made it known both publically and privately of their intent, desire

and preference to sell KOCE-TV to a “secular” bidder, thereby preserving the Station as a
PBS affiliate.

46. Plaintiff, a Christian-owned entity which broadcasts educational, cultural,
artistic and sometimes Christian-themed programming through its various television

stations, is a victim of Defendants’ discriminatory practices by reason of the facts averred

herein.

47. In providing significant government funds to finance the Foundation,
CCCD’s religibus discrimination, including, but not limited to, taking adverse ac{ions
against Plaintift based upon religion, altering the terms and conditions of the sale of
KOCE-TV based upon religion, and disadvantaging bidders because of their religious
beliefs or practices, Defendants are in violation of the Equal Protection Clause of the
Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and made a:tionable by 42
U.S.C. § 1983,

“, .}._)-'»
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48.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief
avers that as a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ discriminatory practices,
Plaintiff has suffered economic loss and damages in that Plaintiff was wrongfully and

illegally prevented from acquiring the unique television station KOCE-TV, which

uPlamuff properly and nghtfully won via public auction, and was thereby prevented from

expanding its broadcast audience and business operations to the lucrative Southern

. .California market.

, 49. As the amount of ddmagcs to Plamtlff asa result of Defendants’

PrrtoapE e s

r

dlscrlmmatory bubmess pldctlcbé as avcncd herem is difficult to ascertdin, Plaintiff is

' 'thhout an adcquate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable harm if Defendants, and

--each of them, as well as thelr respectxve officers, agents, servants and employees, are not

en]omcd from cmploymg agdmst ‘Plaintiff the discr iminatory practices averred in this
Complaiht. : . '

50.  Plaintiff has retained the law firm of SHERMAN & NATHANSON to prosecute
this- action and has and will incur costs and attorneys’ fees in connection therewith.
Plamtiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that it is entitled to an award of
attorney’s fees in this action by virtue 0of 42 U.S.C, § 1988 and, thcrefo,fe, seeks an award
of attorneys’ fees for having filed and prosecuted this action. '

51.  In performing the acts described herein and in taking the actions described
herein in furtherance of sa';d conspiracy, Defendants, and each of them, acted with malice,

oppression and discriminatory intent entitling Plaintiff to an award of punitive and

7 exempléfy d'afmégé‘é;_" in a sum to be determined at trial.
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THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEE

[VIOLATION OF THE RACKETEER INFLUENCED AND CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT

(18 U.S.C. § 1961 ET SEQ.) AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS]

52. Plamtlff re-avers and incorporates herein by this reference each and every

averment contamed in paragraphs 1 through 51, inclusive, of this Complaint.
'53.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief
- avers that at all relevant t1mes mentxoned herem, Defendants havc conducted an

enterprlse throu{,h a patteln of lack(,tccung actwtty in the followmg respects:

A) C onduct of Enterprise: The u,latxoushxp between dnd .J.mong the Defendants

was and is cd—depéndent and symbiotic. Thus, Defendants, and each of them,
-+ represent an “enterprise,” which was created for the purpose of unlawfully .

- tranéféﬁing public prop.cl‘ty, KOCE-TV, from the -CCCD to the Foundation. The

“é'nterprise” precluded the possibility for a fair and lawful auction process or an
arm’s length transaction and was thereby a breeding ground for fraud, impropriety
and sqlf-dealing, examples of which are enumerated in the following subparagraph
and its subsections. Defendants conducted the enterprise by using the United States
mail and wire to fraudulently transfer the assets of KOCE-TV fram CCCD to the
Foundation

(B) Pattern of lgapketeering Activity: The Defendants, pursuant to Sectic;_n
81450, were required to conduct a lawful auction and sell KOCE-TV, a public
asset, to the highest responsible bidder. Instead, Defendants knowingly conducted

" the auction in an illegal fashion for the sole purpose of transferring KOCE-TV to

other parties in the “enterprise” and discriminating against Plaintiff on the basis of
its religious affiliation. In this connection, Defendants used the United States mail
and wire ‘involving and effecting interstate commerce to fraudulently solicit bids

and conduct the auction in a fraudulent and illegal manner. Defendants, and each

x
P
fe

“ “'.
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of them, have engaged in unlawful, unfair, fraudulent and discriminatory business
practices, and have conspired with each other in the exercise of said unlawful,
unfair, fraudulent and discriminatory practices. The practices, without limitation,

consist substantially of the following abuses of the public auction for KOCE-TV:

1. Failing to post notice of the intended sale of KOCE-TV and failing

to publish notice of the intended sale of same in a newspaper having a

- general circulation, as requxrcd by Section 81450;

2. chcatcdly expressmg dlSCYlmmdtOI y intent by way of a desire to sell
KOCE-TVtoa seculm” bldder whcthu or not the highest bidder, in order
0 preserve KOCE-TV as a PBS afﬁhate;

3. Selectively and arbitrarily enforcing the October 8, 2003, bidding
deadline against Plaintiff with fespect to the Amended Daystar Offer on the
grounds that said Offer was submitted one day late, yet two months after the
bidding deadline in December 2003, disregarding said deadline with respect

to defendant Foundation by materially renegotiating the terms of the

Foundation Offer, which, in the form of the Modified Foundation - CCCD
Terms of Sale, constitutes an entirely new offer and acceptance;

4, Failing to provide notice to Plaintiff, the other bidders or the-public
of the Modified Foundation - CCCD Terms of Sale ocourring two months
after the blddmg, y deadline;

5. Re_] ectmzj y the Daystar Offer and Amended Daystar Offer in favor of

the lower and less responsible non-cash bids of defendant Foundation in

 flagrant and willful disregard and violation of Section 81450 because

Plaintiff is a religious broadcaster;

COMPLAINT
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-1 " 6. By resolving to sell KOCE-TV to defendant Foundation, which is

2 not a responsible bidder at all, thereby disregarding the best interests and

3 basic needs of a significant and immediate cash infusion to the 1c;ca1

4 community colleges located within the District, as well as the needs of the

5 " California taxpayers and the public at large; and

6 7. By reducing defendant Foundation’s purchase price and extending

7 J _ ‘the Foundation’s payment S(,hedule per the Modified Foundation — CCCD

8 » Terms of Sale; such action constltuted an 1llegal ngt of pubhc funds.

9 " 's4. Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief

10 g avers that as a direct and proximate result of the racketeering activity of the above-
11

- described enterprise, Plaintift has suffered economic loss and damages in that Plaintiff
12 was wiéngfully and illegally prevented from acquiring the unique television station

13 || - KOCE-TV because of its religious affiliation, even though Plaintiff properly and

14 || rightfully won via public auction. Accordingly, Plaintiff was prevented from expanding
15 its broadcast audience and business operations to the lucrative Southern California

16 market.

17 H 55.  As the amount of damages to Plaintiff as a result of Defgnéiants’ acts and
18 omissions as averred herein is difficult to ascertain, Plaintiff is without an udequéte

i
19 h remedy at law and will suffer irteparable harm if Defendants, and each of them, as well as

20 their respective officers, agents, servants and employees, are not enjoined from employing
21 agéinst Plaintiff the unlawful, unfair, fraudulent and discriminatory business practices
22 || averred in this Complaint. . |
23 || 56.  Plaintiff has retained the law firm of SHERMAN & NATHANSON to prosecute
24 this action and has and will incur costs and attorneys® fees in connection therewith,
25 Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that it is entitled to an award of
26 attorney’s fees in this action by virtue of statute, contract, policy or other law and,
27 thefefore, seelks an award of attorneys’ fees for having filed and prosecuted this action.
28 -
N
— 17 7
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57. In perform'mg the acts described herein and in taking the actions described
herein in furtherance of said conspiracy, Defendants, and each of them, acted vyith malice,
oppression and discriminatory intent entitling Plaintiff to an award of punitive and
exemplary damages in a sum (o be determined at trial.

FOURTH CLAIM FQR RELIEE

[CONSPIRACY FO INTERFERE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS (42 U.S.C. § 1985(3))
AGAINS 1y ALL DEFI_‘.NDANTS]

58. Plamtlff re-avers and mcorpm ates herein by this reference each and every
aveﬁnent contained in paraz,rdphs 1 throuz,h 57 mcluswc, of this Complamt

59.  Defendants, and each of them, were at all times herein mentioned aware of
the interest and means of Plaintiff, which is in the business of acquiring, owning and
operating local television stations, of purchasing KOCE-TV and thefeby expanding its
broadcast audience and business operations fo the Southern California market. The
Defendanfs actions, as described hereinabove, were intentional and knowing and
designed to interfere with the Plaintiff’s right to acquire KOCE-TV based solely on the
fact that Plaintiff is a religious organization. Accordingly, Defendants, and each of them,
conspired to interfere with Plaintiff’s civil rights. ,

60.  Plaintiff is informed and believes and based on such information and belief
avers that as a direct and proximate result of the above-described action, Pla'mtift: has
suffered economic loss and damages in that Plaintiff was wrongfully and illegally
preifented from acquiring KOCE-TV, which Plaintiff properly and rightfully won via
public auction, and was thereby prevented from expanding its broadcast audience and
business operations to the Southern California market. h

| 61.  As the amount of damages to Plaintiff as a result of Defendants’ conspiracy,
Plaintiff is without an adequate remedy at law and will suffer irreparable harm if
Defendants, and each of them, as well as their respective officers, agents, servants and

employees, are not enjoined from interfering with Plaintiff’s civil rights.
'S

VT
), -

b
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-1 62.  Tlaintiff has retained the law firm of SHERMAN & NATHANSON to prosecute
2 this action and has and will incur costs and attorneys’ fees in connection therewith.
3 Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon avers that it is entitled to an award of
4 attorney’s fees in this action by virtue of 42 U.S.C. § 1988 and, therefore, seeks an award
sl r attorneys’ s for having filed and prosecuted this action,
6 63.  In performing the acts described herein and in taking the actions described
7 herem in funheranee of mud consplracy, Defendants and each of them, acted with malice,
8 oppresslon a.nd dlscmmnatmy intent entttlmg Plamtlff to an awa:rd of punitive and
9 exemplary damages in 2 sum to be determined at tual o ’
10 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for Judgment against all. Defendants, and each of
11 ~them, as follows: - - . _
2 | FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIER
13 1. Foran award of general damages according to proof;
14 2. For an award of special damages according to proof;
15 3. For an award of punitive Jamages in an amount sufficient to punish

16 Defendants, and each of them;

17 4, For appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief to end Defendants’
18 discriminatory religious practices; and |
19 5. For an award of reasonablc attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 42 b.S.C. §
20 1988.
21 N SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
22 6. For an award of general damages according to proof;
23 7. For an award of special damages according to proof;
24 h 8. For an award of punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish
25 Defendants, and each of them;
26
27
28 T o
I~
L - g . S
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S. For appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief to end Defendants’
discriminatory religious practices; and ‘

10.  For an award of reasonable attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §
1988.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

15.  For an award of genefal damages according to proof;

16. Foran award of specml damdges accmdmg to proof;

17,  For an award of pumtm. damages in an amount sufficient to punish

T T Y

18.  For appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief to end Defendants’
discriminatory religious practices; and

19.  For an award of reasonable attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §

. 1988. "

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEK

- 20, For an award of general damages according to proof;

21.  For an award of special damages according to proof;

22, For an award of punitive damages in an amount sufficient, to punish
Defendants, and each of them;

23.  For appropriate declaratory and injunctive relief to end Defendants 5_
discriminatory religious practices; and
24.  Yor an award of reasonable attorneys fees and costs pursuant to 42 U.S.C. §
1988. |
ALL, CILLAIMS FOR RELIEF

25.  For prejudgment interest at the legal rate of ten percent (10%) per annum;

26.  For costs of suit incurred herein;

20 ’
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For such other and further relief as the Court may deem j ust and proper

under the circumstances.

DATED: July 20, 2005

SHERMAN & NATHANSON

By

/7 "RICHARD LLOYD SHERMAN, IESQ. =
Attorneys for Plaintiff WORD OF GOD FELLOWSHIP,
INC., D.B.A. DAYSTAR TELEVISION NETWORK
AX.A. COMMUNITY TELEVISION
EDUCATORS OF ORANGE COUNTY, INC.

) ‘F-)-‘_A
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